

Council OPEN MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of Council held in the Council Chambers, 126-148 Oxford St, Levin on Wednesday 7 December 2016 at 4.00 pm.

PRESENT

Mayor Mr M Feyen
Deputy Mayor Mr R H Campbell
Councillors Mr W E R Bishop

Mr R J Brannigan Mr N G Gimblett Mr B F Judd

Mrs V M Kaye-Simmons

Mrs C B Mitchell Ms P Tukapua Mr B P Wanden

IN ATTENDANCE

Mr D M Clapperton (Chief Executive)

Mr D Law (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr G Saidy (Group Manager – Infrastructure Services)

Mrs M Davidson (Group Manager – Customer & Community Services)

Mrs N Brady (Group Manager – Business Services)
Mr D McCorkindale (Senior Manager – Strategic Planning)

Mr M Lester (Project Coordination Manager)

Mr S Grainger (Communications Lead)

Mrs C McCartney (Manager – Strategic Projects)

Ms L Wilson (Communications Lead)
Mrs K J Corkill (Meeting Secretary)
Ms S Bowling (Meeting Secretary)

MEDIA IN ATTENDANCE

Ms M Schroeter ("Manawatu Standard")

Ms T Wood ("Chronicle")
Ms S Beckman ("Chronicle")

Mr M Cropp (Radio New Zealand)

PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were approximately 120 members of the public within Chambers and the Horowhenua Room, with a further approximately 50 accommodated in the foyer with a screen and speakers set up to broadcast the proceedings in Chambers.



The meeting opened with a welcome from His Worship the Mayor and a karakia from Mr Marokopa Wiremu-Matakatea. In expressing his appreciation for the good turnout, Mayor Feyen requested that everyone be patient, listen to the conversations that would take place, and keep the peace.

1 Apologies

An apology was recorded for Cr Mason.

MOVED by Cr Bishop, seconded Cr Campbell:

THAT the apology from Councillor Mason be accepted.

CARRIED

2 Public Speaking Rights

12.1 Removal of Deputy Mayor from Office

Margaret Jeune

Christina Paton

Carolyn Leslie

Anne Hunt

Lew Rohloff

Christine Moriarty

Bryan Ten Have

Williams McGregor

Nathan Murray

12.5 <u>Policy on Appointment of Remuneration of Directors for Council Organisations</u> Anne Hunt

The Chair advised that speaking rights would be taken at the commencement of the relevant item.

3 Late Items

There were no late items.

4 Declaration of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

5 Confirmation of Minutes

MOVED by Cr Kaye-Simmons, seconded Cr Wanden:

THAT the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on Wednesday, 2 November 2016, be confirmed as a true and correct record.

CARRIED

6 Matters Arising

There were no matters arising.

7 Leave of absence

There were no leaves of absence requested.



8 Announcements

There were no announcements.

12. Executive

12.1 Removal of Deputy Mayor from Office

Purpose

To present to Council a requisition under clause 18(3)(b), Schedule 7 of the Local Government Act 2002 to remove the deputy mayor from office.

MOVED by Cr Judd, seconded Cr Brannigan:

THAT Report 16/636 Removal of Deputy Mayor from Office be received.

THAT this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

CARRIED

Speaking Rights

<u>Margaret Jeune</u> spoke in support of the Mayor being able to appoint his own Deputy and against the requisition to remove Ross Campbell. She stressed the need for transparency and working together with the Mayor. She said she also supported the Mayor's posts on his Facebook page as she believed the public had a right to know what was happening within Council, as well as supporting live streaming of Council meetings.

In saying that "the position of Deputy Mayor may be recognised as a virtual apprenticeship" providing an opportunity for Councillors to upskill, <u>Christina Paton</u> suggested 'job sharing' the Deputy Mayor's role. With the Kere Kere Ward having the current Mayor residing there, the Foxton Community Board with the Board Chair sitting at the Council table, and the two Kere Kere Ward Councillors sharing a seat on the Community Board, Mrs Paton suggested the three remaining Wards could choose one representative for one year apiece. A copy of Mrs Paton's speaking rights is **attached** to the official minutes.

<u>Carolyn Leslie</u> spoke against the requisition to remove the Deputy Mayor, saying it was difficult to prepare something to say when no reasons for the action had been given. She said the Mayor had the right to choose his own deputy and had good reasons for doing so. At the conclusion of her speaking rights, Ms Leslie presented a petition to Council which had been signed by over 300 people because they wanted the Councillors and CEO to support Mayor Feyen and Ross Campbell as his choice of Deputy Mayor. A copy of Ms Leslie's speaking rights are **attached** to the official minutes.

Mayor Feyen requested that when people were talking there were no comments from the public gallery.

<u>Anne Hunt</u> spoke in support of Mayor Feyen being able to appoint his own Deputy Mayor and gave some historical background to the change in legislation that enabled Mayors to be able to have that choice. She further outlined her reasons for not supporting the requisition, which included accountability and transparency.

<u>Lew Rohloff</u> said, in his opinion, the Councillors' proposal was ill-advised and had the potential to polarise public opinion across the district and was no less than a



travesty against the principles of governance, representation and democratic process enshrined in the system of local government in New Zealand. He concluded his comments by requesting the Councillors please withdraw the petition. A copy of Mr Rohloff's speaking rights are **attached** to the official minutes.

On introducing herself, <u>Christine Moriarty</u> said she was confused and sad that Horowhenua was in this situation. She wanted to ask the nine Councillors the reasons behind their taking this action to remove the Deputy Mayor. She believed the ratepayers needed an explanation and she hoped they would reach the decision the ratepayers would like them to make.

Bryan Ten Have, having attended every single Council meeting in the previous triennium and for the two terms prior, and being aware of how the Council had previously operated, expressed his concern at the stance being taken against the Mayor and Deputy Mayor, saying the modus operandi of the previous Council was continuing. If they were not prepared to back the Mayor and Deputy Mayor, Mr Ten Have said Councillors were driving the Titanic into the iceberg.

In saying that Horowhenua people had sat passively back over a series of years while debt climbed and people were stifled, <u>William McGregor</u> strongly expressed his support for the Mayor being able to choose his deputy, as provided for in legislation. He said the Council was there to work for the ratepayers of the Horowhenua. Mayor Feyen was the people's choice and Ross Campbell was his choice. He asked that Councillors get behind Mayor Feyen.

<u>Nathan Murray</u> said he held an alternate view from some of the previous speakers and it was not about the choice of Deputy Mayor but it was about democracy. There had been a protest and while he may not agree with why they were protesting, he did applaud the fact that they were able to protest. Even if 100% of the district had voted for the Mayor he still had only one vote. He did have the right to appoint the deputy mayor; Councillors did have the ability to ensure they agreed with that decision. It was an anomaly but he supported the democratic process.

Mr Murray noted that he had also asked for speaking rights to 10.1 - Four Month Financial Report to 31 October 2016.

The Mayor announced a 10 minute adjournment with Councillors joining him in the Ante Room for a discussion. (4.50-5.00 pm). Deputy Mayor Campbell remained in Chambers during the adjournment.

Following a powerful haka (which had been a call for women to rise up) and initial comments from Cr Tukapua on the role and attributes required of a deputy mayor and the possibility of appointing a woman to the role, Mr Clapperton provided some guidance as to next steps. Based on the requisition he advised that the next step would be for Councillors to resolve to remove Ross Campbell as Deputy Mayor before any other action was taken.

MOVED by Cr Tukapua, seconded Cr Kaye-Simmons:

THAT Councillor Ross Campbell is removed from the office of Deputy Mayor.

Councillors each stood and outlined from their individual perspective why they felt Ross Campbell should be removed from the deputy mayoral role.

Cr Campbell declined the opportunity to respond the comments made.



In her right of reply, Cr Tukapua said that she and her fellow councillors had given their views on why they supported the motion. She reiterated for clarity the comment made by Cr Mitchell that it was not against the Mayor; they did want to work with him.

In saying this was a difficult situation, Mayor Feyen enumerated in some detail why he had chosen Ross Campbell as his deputy noting particularly that Cr Campbell had been the only one who worked with him in the previous triennium.

A point of order raised by Cr Judd was overruled and Mayor Feyen completed his comments.

In speaking of confusion with regard to the legislation, with a Mayor being able to appoint their deputy and then over the page that decision could be overturned, Mayor Feyen said he thought a judicial enquiry should be held into the legislation for clarity not only for the Horowhenua but for other Councils around the country. He said he wanted to signal that should a new Deputy Mayor be chosen he would immediately reinstate Ross Campbell back as Deputy Mayor and seek a judicial review.

Mayor Feyen reiterated that he needed a Deputy Mayor that he could work with and someone he totally trusted. He repeated that after the vote was taken he would be exercising his right to choose the Deputy Mayor he felt he needed to bring about the change that he promised.

A division on the motion was called for, voting on which was as follows:

For: Against:

Councillors: Wayne Bishop Councillors: Ross Campbell Ross Brannigan Michael Feyen

Neville Gimblett Barry Judd

Victoria Kaye-Simmons

Christine Mitchell Piri-Hira Tukapua Bernard Wanden

The motion was declared **CARRIED** by 8 votes to 2.

Mayor Feyen publicly stated that he was exercising his right under s41A to choose his Deputy Mayor and that was Cr Ross Campbell, and he would be working with the Chief Executive to have the matter properly looked at and would abide by the findings of that enquiry.

Cr Judd sought clarification from the Chief Executive on the process given that Council had been provided with no notice of the Mayor's intention to reuse the powers contained in s41A of the Local Government Act and there were still matters in the requisition not yet dealt with by the meeting.

Mr Clapperton referred the meeting to the requisition reading out the final component that needed to be addressed: if the deputy mayor was removed from office, a new deputy mayor was to be elected at the meeting if a majority of the total membership (excluding vacancies) so resolved.

The meeting adjourned briefly (6.00-6.05 pm).



Mayor Feyen advised that the process to elect a new Deputy Mayor would proceed and he called for nominations.

Councillors selected the method of voting following the process set out in legislation and standing orders, with System B – which involved a single round of voting – being the preferred system as indicated by a show of hands.

Nominations was called for the position of Deputy Mayor.

Cr Tukapua nominated Cr Kaye-Simmons, with Cr Kaye Simmons seconding the nomination.

Cr Brannigan nominated Cr Bishop. This was seconded by Cr Wanden.

The movers, seconders and nominees spoke to the nominations prior to the nominations being put to the vote.

For Cr Kaye-Simmons: Crs Tukapua and Kaye Simmons

For Cr Bishop: Crs Brannigan, Gimblett, Judd, Mitchell, Wanden and

Bishop.

On the basis of that determination, the Chief Executive declared that Cr Bishop had been elected as Deputy Mayor.

Mayor Feyen apologised for jumping the gun but reiterated his choice of Cr Campbell as Deputy Mayor and the fact that he and the CE would be seeking a ruling from a higher authority on this and he would stand by any ruling received.

In speaking to the process, the Chief Executive said he believed the process followed had met the requirements of the Act. However, the Mayor had chosen to exercise what he also believed was due process in re-appointing the person he had chosen as Deputy Mayor. His understanding was that the new Deputy Mayor's appointment would stand until a ruling had been received to the contrary.

The meeting adjourned for a meal break at 6.25 pm and reconvened at 7.00 pm.

9 Proceedings of Committees

9.1 Proceedings of the Foxton Community Board 21 November 2016

Purpose

To present to the Council the minutes of the Foxton Community Board meeting held on 21 November 2016.

MOVED by Cr Campbell, seconded Mr Gimblett:

THAT Report 16/637 Proceedings of the Foxton Community Board 21 November 2016 be received.

THAT the Council receive the minutes of the Foxton Community Board meeting held on 21 November 2016.

CARRIED

Mr Roache, Community Board Chair, gave a brief update on the Board's activities. To date there had only been one meeting, with Board Members appointed to various



groups. There had also been a couple of briefings, with one being to do with Parks and Reserves and the other being on Main Street.

With regard to Main Street, whilst not being prepared to open it up to public consultation again, Mr Roache said a public meeting would be held to bring people up to date on progress. He confirmed that there would be the opportunity at that public meeting for people to ask questions.

One of the things he wanted to see was a good strong relationship with Council and he also wanted to ensure that both the Board Members and the public were well informed.

What was proposed in Main Street, particularly with regard to the Cenotaph area, was raised and discussed.

In terms of the Cenotaph area/northern end of Main Street, Mr Clapperton said he had given an undertaking to the Community Action Group that that area would be consulted on. There was the possibility that the entire section of road could be closed off completely as there was an area there that was potentially of significance to iwi. He did believe that the retail area needed to be kept better informed of what was being undertaken as even the work that was being done now was being 'tweaked' and there may be the need for further 'tweaks' with what was proposed.

Cr. Gimblett did note that between 2010 and 2013 there had been significant

Cr Gimblett did note that between 2010 and 2013 there had been significant consultation on Main Street, with 56 submissions received and two days and two nights of hearings held, with there being no significant changes in the plans for between Wharf and Clyde Streets.

9.2 Proceedings of the Community Wellbeing Executive 15 November 2016

Purpose

To present to the Council the minutes of the Community Wellbeing Executive meeting held on 15 November 2016.

MOVED by Cr Judd, seconded Cr Kaye-Simmons:

THAT Report 16/639 Proceedings of the Community Wellbeing Executive 15 November 2016 be received.

THAT the Council receive the minutes of the Community Wellbeing Executive meeting held on 15 November 2016

CARRIED

10 Finance

10.1 Four Month Financial Report to 31 October 2016

Purpose

To present to the Horowhenua District Council the four month financial report to 31 October 2016.

MOVED by Cr Kaye-Simmons, seconded Cr Bishop:

THAT Report 16/638 Four Month Financial Report to 31 October 2016 be received.

THAT this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

CARRIED

Mr Murray, having requested to speak to this item, congratulated the CFO, Mr Law, and Finance staff on the concise documentation that had been presented. He considered them transparent and very open. He had a query in relation to the Statement of Rates Debtors on Agenda page 47 and rates arrears. It appeared that



the Hokio community, which was 1.2% of the district's rating base, represented 20% of the rating arrears. His question was why.

Mr Law advised that this related to Māori land. Unpaid rates could not be recovered by land sale so the rates remained unpaid with no ability for collection.

Mr Clapperton added further comment that he had endeavoured to come to an arrangement with the Māori owners: however that had not eventuated.

In saying that there appeared to be a problem with understanding the difference between 'debt' and 'liabilities', Cr Mitchell's requested Mr Law to provide a simple explanation of the difference between the two.

Mrs Davidson undertook to provide a breakdown of the higher than budgeted additional revenue in relation to the Aquatic Centres.

11 Infrastructure Services

11.1 Update on Infrastructure Services Capital Projects - November 2016 Purpose

To update the Horowhenua District Council on the Infrastructure Services Capital Projects.

MOVED by Cr Bishop, seconded Cr Wanden:

That Report 16/627 Update on Infrastructure Services Capital Projects - November 2016 be received.

That this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

CARRIED

Mr Saidy joined the table to speak to this report, which was taken as read. The report provided an update on the projects Council was currently implementing in the district, including the Levin Water Treatment Plant upgrade and the Levin Stormwater project.

Responding to a query as to whether the telemetry installed was living up to expectations, Mr Saidy said they were happy with the telemetry installed so far and further telemetry presentations would be done at Councillor briefings going forward.

11.2 Update on Procurement Strategy - 3 Waters O&M Contract

Purpose

To inform and update the Horowhenua District Council on the *Procurement Strategy* of 3 Waters O&M Contract.

MOVED by Cr Judd, seconded Mr Gimblett:

THAT Report 16/640 Update on Procurement Strategy - 3 Waters O&M Contract be received.

THAT this decision is recognised as not significant in terms of S76 of the Local Government Act.

CARRIED



With this report also taken as read, Mr Saidy said this was to provide an update and highlight some key points in terms of procurement for this contract. The current contract was extended for two years until June 2017 to give Council the time to review going forward how it wanted to deliver these services for the district. What was proposed going forward was a more collaborative model than in the past. With the projected growth in the district there would be challenges in even getting contractors to bid and that was not going to improve.

Responding to a query about using local contractors, Mr Saidy said that part of the maintenance contract was so complex there may not be a local contractor that could deliver to that level. However, local contractors could be utilised as subcontractors.

Given the size of the contract, discussion particularly focussed on the criteria for contractor selection as set out in the report. Also discussed was the possible impact on staffing. The Chief Executive suggested having a briefing on this matter for those who were interested.

12 Executive

12.2 Te Awahou Nieuwe Stroom - Construction Report November 2016

Purpose

To present to Council an update on progress of the Te Awahou Nieuwe Stroom Project.

MOVED by Cr Tukapua, seconded Cr Bishop:

THAT Report 16/641 Te Awahou Nieuwe Stroom - Construction Report November 2016 be received.

THAT this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

CARRIED

Mrs McCartney gave a PowerPoint update on the current status of the Te Awahou Nieuwe Stroom Project.

An update on funding was requested for any future report, as was some indication of actual running costs.

12.3 Monitoring Report to 7 December 2016

Purpose

To present to Council the updated monitoring report covering requested actions from previous meetings of Council.

MOVED by Cr Judd, seconded Cr Brannigan:

THAT Report 16/595 Monitoring Report to 7 December 2016 be received.

THAT this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

CARRIED

Page 82 Adoption of Growth Targets

With the growth targets obviously having been adopted, Cr Judd queried what the work programme would be going forward, or was there going to be a briefing on this.



Mr Clapperton said, depending on available time as part of the induction process, there was every intention to give and update on the growth response and an indication of what the next steps would be post-Christmas.

12.4 Chief Executive's Report to 7 December 2016

Purpose

For the Chief Executive to update Councillors, or seek endorsement on, a number of matters being dealt with.

MOVED by Cr Judd, seconded Cr Campbell:

THAT Report 16/596 Chief Executive's Report to 7 December 2016 be received.

THAT this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

CARRIED

3.2 <u>Local Governance Statement – Council Work Programme</u>

This was just an indication of what needed to be done prior to the adoption of Council's Local Governance Statement.

3.1 Economic Development Update

As well as the positives in terms of growth in GDP, residential consent growth and subdivision growth, Mr Clapperton said another positive indicator was the increase in school role numbers. Numbers had come through showing they were up 1.4% for primary schools. This showed it was not just older people being attracted to the district, but families as well.

In terms of discussion on Standing Orders and the Code of Conduct, Mr Clapperton advised that it was the intention that these would be discussed at the briefing on 19 December.

12.5 Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors for Council Organisations

Purpose

To bring to the attention of Council the existence of its Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors for Council Organisations, and to identify any areas for amendment at the beginning of the new triennium..

MOVED by Mr Gimblett, seconded Cr Brannigan:

THAT Report 16/577 Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors for Council Organisations be received.

THAT this decision is recognised as not significant in terms of S76 of the Local Government Act

CARRIED

Mrs Hunt raised the inclusion of the Horowhenua Lake Domain Board in the list of Council Organisations. She requested that this be removed as it caused confusion and created a perception in terms of Lake Horowhenua that it was public property.



MOVED by Mayor Feyen, seconded Cr Judd:

THAT Horowhenua District Council confirms its Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors for Council Organisations with authority given to the Chief Executive and Mayor to amend terminology around council organisations.

CARRIED

12.6 Documents Executed and Electronic Transactions Authorities Signed

Purpose

To present to Council the documents that have been executed, Electronic Transactions Authorities and Contracts that have been signed by two elected Councillors, which now need ratification.

MOVED by Cr Campbell, seconded Cr Bishop:

THAT Report 16/599 Documents Executed and Electronic Transactions Authorities Signed be received.

THAT this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

THAT the Horowhenua District Council hereby ratifies the signing of documents and Electronic Transaction Authorities as scheduled:

- (a) Bond binding Paula Jane Loader to Horowhenua District Council in the sum of Two Thousand Four Hundred Dollars (\$2,400) to comply with conditions of consent 502/2016/3790 relating to the site described as Lot 11 DP 15539 comprised in Certificate of Title WN573/200 with an area of 880m², 64 Parker Avenue, Levin.
- (b) Bond binding Christopher John Hathaway, Jeanine Catherine Hathaway & Raewyn Eva Brumby as to ½ share and Jeanine Catherine Hathaway, Christopher John Hathaway and Raewyn Eva Brumby as to a ½ share to Horowhenua District Council in the sum of Seven Thousand Dollars (\$7,000) to comply with conditions of consent LUC/501/2016/3815 relating to the site described as Part Lot 1 DP 2035 comprised in Certificate of Title WN51D/742 with an area of 3.1429 hectares, 119 Engles Road, Tokomaru Rural.
- (c) Bonding binding Ian Ross Humphrey & Karen Frances Humphrey to Horowhenua District Council in the sum of Three Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty Dollars (\$3,450) to comply with conditions of consent SUB/502/2016/3766 relating to the site described as Lot 2 DP 21404 comprised in Certificate of Title WN12C/890 with an area of 809m², 6 Marine Parade South, Foxton Beach.
- (d) Electronic Transaction Authority relating to sale of 19 Oxnam Place, Foxton Beach to Peter Potaka and Shona Bernice Potaka, contained in Certificate of Title 399498.
- (e) Electronic Transaction Authority relating to sale of 8 Forbes Road, Foxton Beach to Allan George Price and Isobel Frances Price, contained in Certificate of Title 399519.
- (f) Electronic Transaction Authority relating to the leasehold transfer of 143 Seabury Avenue, Foxton Beach to Gerald Peter Dance and Susan Anne Saunders, contained in Certificate of Title 11A/493.



- (g) Electronic Transaction Authority relating to sale of 6 Forbes Road, Foxton Beach to Wayne Brendon Jensen and Nicola Patterson' Jensen, contained in Certificate of Title 399520.
- (h) Electronic Transaction Authority relating to sale of 10 Forbes Road, Foxton Beach to Simon Luke and Xuan Luke, contained in Certificate of Title 399518.
- (i) Electronic Transaction Authority relating to sale of 95 Seabury Avenue, Foxton Beach to Zeal Properties Limited, contained in Certificate of Title WN10C/915.

CARRIED

15 Customer and Community Services

13.1 Planning Services Matters Considered Under Delegated Authority

Purpose

To present details of decisions made under delegated authority in respect of Planning Services Matters.

MOVED by Cr Mitchell, seconded Cr Wanden:

THAT Report 16/600 Planning Services Matters Considered Under Delegated Authority be received.

THAT this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of s76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

THAT the matters decided under delegated authority (s104 of the Resource Management Act) as listed, be received:

All <u>Subdivision</u> Resource Consents Granted Under Delegated Authority 19/10/16 to 18/11/16

Approved Date	File Ref	Applicant	Address	
26.10.2016	SUB/3830	Brett Mitchell	11 Montgomery Street, Levin	
01.11.2016	SUB/3822	Levin Golf Club	142-160 Moutere Road, Levin Rural	
02.11.2016	SUB/3841	Natural Bark & Compost Ltd	128-146 State Highway 1, Foxton	
04.11.2016	SUB/3835	Selwyn Spicer	212 State Highway 57, Levin Rural	
15.11.2016	SUB/3826	Matauri Mara Development Trust	Mangahao Road, Tokomaru	
17.11.2016	SUB/3838	Jonathan Smith	292 Gladstone Road, Levin Rural	
17.11.2016	SUB/3837	Target Developments Ltd	36C Palmer Road, Foxton	



All <u>Land Use</u> Resource Consents Granted Under Delegated Authority 19/10/16 to 18/11/16

Approved Date	File Ref	Applicant	Address
19.10.2016	501/3836	Julian McBrearty	21 Okarito Avenue, Levin
21.10.2016	501/3832	lan Humphrey	6 Marine Parade South, Foxton Beach
02.11.2016	501/3824	David Fraser	18 Gordon Place, Levin
03.11.2016	501/3840	Brendon Nicholson	518 Kawiu Road, Levin Rural
08.11.2016	501/3848	Dan 2001 Trust	278 Heatherlea East Road, Levin Rural
10.11.2016	501/3856	APD Design	8 Story Street, Foxton Beach
15.11.2016	501/3823	Homestead Concrete	56 Shortt Street, Foxton Beach

CARRIED

R	.5	n	nı	m
v	. •	•	$\boldsymbol{\nu}$	

There being no further business, the Chairperson declared the meeting closed following a karakia by Mr Robert Ketu.

CONFIRMED AS A TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD AT A MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD ON

DA	TE:	 	
	<u> </u>	 	

CHAIRPERSON: